


http://www.colfax-ca.gov/




City of Colfax 2 

City Council Minutes January 23, 2019 
 

City Manager Heathcock asked to pull Item 3C, Sierra Oaks Estates Subdivision – Final Map 
Approval, from the Consent calendar.   
 
On a motion by Councilmember Burruss, and a second by Councilmember Lomen, the City Council 
approved Items 3A, 3B, 3D, and 3E. 
AYES:  Burruss, Douglass, Fatula, Lomen, Mendoza 
 

3A. Sierra Oaks Estates Subdivision ɀ Final Map Approval 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 02-2019 approving the Final Map and accepting 
associated grant deeds for the Sierra Oaks Estates subdivision. 

City Manager Heathcock stated the Sierra Oaks Subdivision and Tentative Vesting Map were 
approved by Council over a year ago.  Final maps must be approved by Council so the development 
can move forward.  The maps provided in the agenda packet have subsequently been modified 
slightly to clean up some of the descriptions.  He handed Council copies of the map denoting the 
minor changes.   
Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza asked for the expected price point for the homes to be built and if plans 
have been made for the commercial lot on the edge of the development. 
Eric Stauss, representing the developer, stated construction is slated for April this year but prices 
cannot be determined before the construction costs have been finalized.  Decisions regarding 
development of the commercial lot will be made after the majority of the residences are built. 
Mayor Fatula asked for a description of the subdivision which is 34 lots with semi-custom homes 
built with the empty nester in mind.  The smallest home plan design is 2070 square feet. 
 
On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, and a second by Councilmember Lomen, the City Council 
adopted Resolution 02-2019. 
AYES:  Burruss, Douglass, Fatula, Lomen, Mendoza 
 

4 PUBLIC COMMENT 
Bill Roach, Humane Officer for the Humane Society of the Sierra Foothills 
¶ Mr. Roach explained the services provided by his organization to prosecute cases of 

animal cruelty. 
Council thanked Mr. Roach for his work with the Humane Society. 
 

5 COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS 
5A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items ɀ All Councilmembers 

Councilmember Lomen 
¶ Councilmember Lomen attended a conference for new council members.  
¶ He represented the City at the Weimar, Applegate, Colfax Municipal Advisory 

Committee (WACMAC) meeting. 
Councilmember Douglass 
¶ Councilmember Douglass participated in the ethics/harassment prevention training 

held for elected officials and supervisors. 
¶ He reported the Sierra Vista Community Center Board would like to partner with 

the City to install a digital announcement sign in the City and asked the topic be 
placed on a future agenda. 



City of Colfax 3 

City Council Minutes January 23, 2019 
 

¶ He represented the City on the Sacramento Area Council Of Governments (SACOG) 
Board.  Colfax may be a good candidate for funding in a pilot study to reduce 
greenhouse gases through changes in traffic patterns. 

¶ He also attended the Placer County Economic Development Board and recommends 
Council invite County staff to give a presentation of the resources available from the 
County.   

¶ He participated in several community events:  Lions Club Crab Feed, VFW Breakfast 
and the Sierra Vista Community Center Flea Market. 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza 
¶ Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza attended the WACMAC meeting. 
¶ She is helping to organize a Chili Cook-off fundraiser for the Volunteer Firefighters 

Association which will be held on March 9 at the Sierra Vista Community Center. 
Councilmember Burruss 
¶ Councilmember Burruss attended the ethics training class and the new council 

member conference. 
¶ She had a meeting with Mike Luken, executive director of the Placer County 

Transportation Planning Agency (PCTPA). 
¶ Councilmember Burruss represented the City at the PCTPA Board meeting. 
¶ She announced the upcoming Crab Feed supporting the Safe and Sober Grad Night 

to be held on January 26, 2019. 
Mayor Fatula 
¶ Mayor Fatula also attended the conference and training classes. 
¶ He met with Sergeant Conners and Councilmember Lomen for a tour of the Sheriff’s 

facilities.  The number of services available to the City through the contract is quite 
impressive. 

¶ He reported several businesses like having the strings of lights up on Main Street 
and have offered to pay the expenses to keep them up past the holiday season. 

¶ He mentioned he is open to new ideas from the public and invited citizens to share 
them. 

5B. City Operations ɀ City Staff 
City Manager Heathcock 
¶ City Manager Heathcock represented the City at the Solid Waste Local Task Force 

committee.  The County has proposed developing the area near the landfill which 
will affect residents in Colfax 5-10 years with much higher costs because the current 
landfill will not have room to expand.  Trash will then need to be hauled to a location 
outside the County.   

5C. Additional Reports ɀ Agency Partners 
Chris Nave, Public Information Officer, Gold Run Area California Highway Patrol. 
¶ Officer Nave gave a report of CHP activities in the Colfax area. 
¶ He is developing a winter driving video hoping to encourage safety, respect, and 

cleanliness during storm events and road closures. 
¶ He is available for safe car seat installation appointments with individuals and 

would like to coordinate an event with the Chamber. 
Brian Eagan, Colfax Battalion Chief 
¶ Chief Eagan updated Council on recent activities of the local Cal Fire station and 

the Colfax Volunteer Firefighters Association. 

3 of 6





City of Colfax 5 

City Council Minutes January 23, 2019 
 

6 COUNCIL BUSINESS 
6A. Changing title of Mayor Pro Tem to Vice Mayor  

Staff Presentation:  Alfred A. “Mick” Cabral, City Attorney 
Recommendation:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 03-2019 Changing title of 
“Mayor Pro Tem” to “Vice Mayor.” 
 

City Attorney Cabral stated this item is at request of the Council.  The Mayor Pro Tem’s title can by 
changed at the Council’s discretion.  The State Government Code provides the Council will choose 
the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem from among its members.  As long as Council has selected members 
to perform the functions of these roles, Council can change the titles. 
 
Mayor Fatula stated this item came about because of a conversation with high school students who 
didn’t know the meaning of “Mayor Pro Tem.”  He believes “Vice Mayor” is a more accurate title 
than “Mayor Pro Tem” since “Pro Tem” just means temporary.   
 
Council asked what expenses the City has incurred to bring this proposal to Council.  Attorney and 
other staff time thus far has cost about $300. 
 
Chad Ingersoll, 12 W Oak Street, stated this is a waste of time and already a waste of money with 
no purpose. 
 
Steve Harvey, 251 Scholtz, reminded Council the costs involved are more than just the attorney’s 
fees.  He cautioned Council to make decisions related to items in the budget and those which will 
improve the lives of all the citizens. 
 
Will Stockwin, 525 Pine Street, asked how this change would benefit Colfax citizens.  He 
commented on the irony of changing the names since most definitions of “vice” are negative. 
 
Councilmember Douglass affirmed he prefers the title “Mayor Pro Tem” and wondered at the costs 
to the City going forward. 
 
No council member offered a motion and the resolution was dropped. 
 

6B. Unfunded Pension Liability 
Staff Presentation:  Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director  
Recommendation:  Discuss and direct staff as appropriate. 
 

City Manager Heathcock commended Ms. Van Groningen’s efforts to study this difficult topic and 
encapsulate the information into an understandable format. 
 
Finance Director Van Groningen explained Council implemented an annual review of the unfunded 
pension liability from CalPERS a few years ago and created a reserve fund of about $50,000 to 
offset the liability.  The unfunded liability has occurred because the expenses to run the CalPERS 
program have exceeded the expectations.  The City’s liability is relatively small for several reasons: 

1) Colfax is new to the program, just since 2008;  
2) There are no police or fire personnel which receive higher benefits than other employees; 

5 of 6



City of Colfax 6 

City Council Minutes January 23, 2019 

3) Only 36% of employees are enrolled in the Classic CalPERS program.  Most Colfax
employees enrolled in CalPERS after 2013 and receive fewer benefits though the PEPRA
plan than those who are “Classic CalPERS” employees.

4)  
Council can direct staff to deal with the approximately $100,000 unfunded liability in several ways. 

1) The City can continue to pay the obligation through the standard CalPERS payment which
is set up something like a mortgage with a 20-year payout.

2) Council could prepay the entire amount, but risks overpaying CalPERS because the market
could change and the liability decrease.

3) Council could direct staff to set aside another $50,000 to add to the reserve account.
4) Another alternative is to pay down the unfunded liability with the reserve fund.

At this point, staff does not recommend changing the current strategy of paying the obligation with 
the monthly payment and keeping the reserve account.  Staff recommends monitoring the funds 
and will report back to Council annually. 

Councilmember Burruss asked what interest rate the City is earning for the reserve account. 
Finance Direct Van Groningen responded the interest rate is current 2 ½%. 

City Manager Heathcock explained that since this is a complex issue and CalPERS is in the process 
of changing rules, it would be best to address any changes Council might request at the Fiscal 
Year 2019Ȥςπ Budget review.  Council concurred with his suggestion. 

Steve Harvey, 251 Scholtz Ave, recommended the City pay down the balance by of the liability by 
$45,000 and then set aside another $45,000. 

7 GOOD OF THE ORDER ɀ INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE
BUSINESS OF THE CITY 

There were no Good of the Order comments. 

8 ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Fatula adjourned the meeting at 8:57PM. 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 13th day of February, 2019. 

6 of 6















2 

 

 
The regulations adopted by Resolution 12-2018 require a four-phase process. Phase 1 involves a preliminary 
determination of eligibility for issuance of a commercial cannabis permit, and includes a criminal history 
check, confirming that the application is complete, verifying that the proposed location conforms with City 
requirements, and executing an agreement whereby the applicant agrees to indemnify the City. Phase 2 
requires an initial ranking of applicants. Phase 3 provides for a second ranking of applicants. Phase 4 includes 
ǘƘŜ /ƛǘȅ aŀƴŀƎŜǊΩǎ ǊŜŎƻƳƳŜƴŘŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǿƘƛŎƘΣ ƛŦ ŀƴȅΣ ǎǳŎŎŜǎǎŦǳƭ ŀǇǇƭƛŎŀƴǘǎ ǎƘƻǳƭŘ ǊŜŎŜƛǾŜ ŀ ŎƻƳƳŜǊŎƛŀƭ 
Ŏŀƴƴŀōƛǎ ǇŜǊƳƛǘΣ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ /ƛǘȅ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ŀǇǇǊƻǾŀƭΦ !ƭƭ ŎƻƳƳŜǊŎƛŀƭ Ŏŀƴƴŀōƛǎ ǇŜǊƳƛǘǎ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜ /ƛǘȅ Council 
approval. 
 
IŘ[ ǿŀǎ ǘƘŜ /ƛǘȅΩǎ Ŏƻƴǎǳƭǘŀƴǘ ǘƘŀǘ ŘǊŀŦǘŜŘ hǊŘƛƴŀƴŎŜ рос ŀƴŘ wŜǎƻƭǳǘƛƻƴǎ мн-2018, 13-018 and 14-018 and 
was retained to process commercial cannabis permit applications.  Staff forwarded all applications to HdL for 
the Phase 1 Preliminary Determination of Eligibility. 
 
On August 8, 2018, shortly before the Phase 1 application process was completed, Council directed staff to 
stop the application process until further direction from Council. Staff stopped the process as directed and 
refunded all fees to the applicants. Council separately directed staff to allow Golden State Patient Care to 
continue operating under a temporary business license pending further Council direction. GSPC continues to 
operate under that temporary license.  
 
Ordinance 536 authorizes the Council to issue a maximum of four commercial cannabis permits. No more 
than two of those licenses can be for medicinal cannabis retailers, and two for adult use cannabis retailers. 
These are maximum limits. Nothing in Ordinance 536 or the adopted regulations requires the Council to issue 
any cannabis licenses at all. The Council has the right to determine the number of applications it will accept, 
and the type(s) of license(s) it will accept applications for. The Council also has the right to reject any or all 
applications, even those submitted by applicants that meet all City requirements, if the Council determines 
that doing so would be in the best interests of the City.  
 
Council is, however, bound by the process adopted in Ordinance 536 and Resolution 12-2018. Ordinance 536, 
{ŜŎǘƛƻƴ рΦонΦлол ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜǎ ά9ȄŎŜǇǘ ŀǎ ǎǇŜŎƛŦƛŎŀƭƭȅ ŀǳǘƘƻǊƛȊŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘƛǎ /ƘŀǇǘŜǊΣ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳƳŜǊŎƛŀƭ ŎǳƭǘƛǾŀǘƛƻƴΣ 
manufacture, processing, storing, laboratory testing, labeling, sale, delivery, distribution or 
transportaǘƛƻƴΦΦΦƻŦ Ŏŀƴƴŀōƛǎ ƻǊ Ŏŀƴƴŀōƛǎ ǇǊƻŘǳŎǘ ƛǎ ŜȄǇǊŜǎǎƭȅ ǇǊƻƘƛōƛǘŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ /ƛǘȅ ƻŦ /ƻƭŦŀȄΦέ The process 
under which any commercial cannabis permit is issued is authorized by Ordinance 536, and no other 
applicable City ordinance.  

 
Staff is available to answer any questions or provide information.   

 
 

Item 7A



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE FEBRUARY 13, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

DATE: February  5, 2019 
SUBJECT: Sewer Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Planning 

Grant ς Environmental Review Agreement with Adrienne L. Graham, AICP 
 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $63,822 
FROM FUND:  561 
(Reimbursed by Grant) 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 03-2019 authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into an agreement with Adrienne L. Graham, AICP for the environmental review 
component of the Planning Grant for Sewer Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Improvements in an amount not to exceed $63,822 contingent upon approval of the Regional Water 
Quality Control Board grant funding. 

 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
 

The State Water Resources Control Board and the nine Regional Water Quality Control Boards, collectively the 
State Water Board, protects and improves water quality in California through several regulatory and financial 
assistance programs.  The Federal Clean Water Act established the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) 
program to finance the protection and improvement of water quality. 
 

Section 79723 of Proposition 1 allocates $260 million to the CWSRF Small Community Grant (SCG) Fund. The 
State Water Board has an annual SCG appropriation of $8 million dollars, which is administered consistent with 
the CWSRF Intended Use Plan (IUP), and the CWSRF Policy. The Proposition 1 funds will supplement existing SCG 
authority. CWSRF applications are accepted on a continuous basis, and eligible projects are funded as 
applications are completed and approved.  

 

The SCG Fund allows the State Water Board to assist communities in California with the most need, helping 
those that cannot otherwise afford a loan or similar financing to move forward with water quality 
improvements. According to the 2016 Median Household Income (MHI) Data, the City of Colfax could qualify for 
a 100% Grant as long as all the components of the project are eligible under the CWSRF Policy.  Grant funds may 
be awarded up to $500,000 for Planning and $6,000,000 for Construction. 

 

At the September 26, 2018 regular meeting, Council authorized the City Manager to apply for grant funding to 
conduct a comprehensive sewer Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant improvement project to 
improve operations, make needed system repairs and upgrades, and reduce ongoing operational costs. The City 
is hopeful that the grant dollars will offset future rate increases by reducing infrastructure upgrade obligations.  
Other benefits would include:  Energy efficiency, reduction of Inflow and Infiltration (I&I), prevention of Sanitary 
Sewer Overflows (S{hΩǎ), and replacement of City Infrastructure that has exceeded its useful life. 
 
 
 

Item 7B
1 of 28

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/srf/index.html
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/srf/finalpolicy0513.html
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/srf/srf_forms.html


City Staff has identified the following activities to be considered for this potential funding: 
 

1. Pump Station 3 Force Main Repair 
The City lift station #3 Force Main Pipe is constructed of asbestos concrete that is severely aged. The 900 
linear feet of 4-inch pipe has required maintenance to address a section that recently failed. During the 
repair, City staff noticed the pipe has become brittle, which indicates further issues are inevitable. The 
construction project is planned to use either open trench or bursting to remediate the system 
deficiency.  
 

2. Installation of Solar at the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) 
The cost of Utilities (primarily electricity) is the second highest cost of Sewer Operations and accounts 
for approximately 15% of total operating costs.  The City would like to pursue having solar panels 
installed at the WWTP through a purchase agreement. 
 

3. Algae Control – Installation of Dissolved Air Flotation (DAF) or Suspended Air Flotation (SAF)  
During the wet season, influent flows which are higher than the WWTP is designed to handle are stored 
in the plantΩs pond system. The water is then recovered from the ponds and added to the influent for 
treatment. 
 

Storing water rich in nutrients, combined with warm temperatures, and sun causes algae to grow. The 
WWTP is not equipped to deal with algae, as it causes an increased, but false, Chemical Oxygen Demand 
(measurement of chemicals in the water that can be oxidized) and turbidity issues. The plant operators 
use the Chemical Oxygen Demand to calculate process changes needed. Turbidity monitoring is a NPDES 
(National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System) requirement per the State Water Resources Control 
BoardΩs permit for the WWTP.  
 

The W²¢tΩǎ ǇŜǊƳƛǘ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜǎ dewatering the storage ponds adequately for the next wet weather 
season. Currently the WWTP has no treatment process to facilitate the removal of algae to effectively 
dewater the ponds on a consistent basis. The goal is to purchase a .25mgd (million gallons/day) 
Dissolved Air Flotation (DAF) or Suspended Air Flotation (SAF) to allow the operators to coagulate and 
dispose of the algae prior to adding stored water back into the treatment system.  
 

4. Sewer Collection System Improvements 
The City would like to review and update the Wastewater Collection System Condition Assessment 
created in 2010 and develop a construction plan for remaining repairs to reduce I&I. 
 

The City completed two large I&I remediation projects in 2010/11 and 2012/13.  The projects replaced 
or lined nearly 18,000 feet of sewer main (40% of total), rehabilitated over 47 manholes (29%), and 
replaced more than 187 laterals (27%) between the main and the property lines.  This new project 
would enable the City to review the Remaining C1 (Condition assessment of Immediate Risk of Failure) 
Repairs that were identified previously and assess the current condition of the sewer collection system 
pipelines.  The aforementioned repairs reduced the peaking factor during rain events to eight times the 
flow during dry season.  The new I&I project goal is to reduce the flow peaking factor to four times the 
dry flow, thus diminishing the need to upsize collection pipes leading to the WWTP. 
 

The grant funding is from the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA); therefore, the improvement projects 
will be subject to both the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and National Environmental Policy Act 
(NEPA). The City will serve as lead agency for CEQA. The State Water Resources Control Board (Water Board) 
will serve as a responsible agency under CEQA and handle the NEPA review.   Coordination with the Water 
Board early in the process will ensure that the environmental studies and CEQA documentation are adequate 
both for the Water Board and NEPA purposes. The City does not have the specialized expertise in-house to 
perform the environmental review; therefore, staff is recommending contracting with Adrienne L. Graham, AICP 
to execute the following tasks:  

Item 7B
2 of 28



 
Task 1:  Project Initiation 
 
¢ƘŜ Ŏƻƴǎǳƭǘŀƴǘ ǿƛƭƭ ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ŜȄƛǎǘƛƴƎ ŘƻŎǳƳŜƴǘŀǘƛƻƴΣ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ /ƛǘȅΩǎ DŜƴŜǊŀƭ tƭŀƴΣ ŜƴƎƛƴŜŜǊƛƴƎ ǎǘǳŘƛŜǎ 
prepared for the project, the grant application, and any other pertinent project documents provided by the City.  
A meeting with City staff could occur during this task to discuss the proposed project, CEQA process, scope, 
schedule or other items as warranted.  In addition, the Consultant will discuss the scope of the environmental 
analysis with Water Board staff.  
 
A draft project description will be drafted and circulated to the City for review based on available engineering 
and other information provided by the City. The Consultant will revise the draft project description based on 
City comments. 
 
The Consultant will work with the City and Water Board to confirm that the collection system and wastewater 
improvement portions of the project are eligible for a Categorical Exemption under CEQA.  An initial assessment 
of the potential for these projects to have significant impacts will also be made, based on the biological resource 
and cultural resource surveys and construction emissions calculations.  The biological and cultural resource 
surveys will be prepared after receipt of mapping that shows the pipeline corridors where improvements could 
occur and the boundaries of the Solar Power project, including possible staging areas.  The construction 
emissions will be prepared after receipt of the same mapping information, as well as details about the type of 
equipment to be used, project duration and other factors.  If emissions could exceed applicable thresholds 
and/or significant impacts on biological or cultural resources are identified, the Consultant will contact the City 
to discuss the incorporation of these projects into the Solar Power project MND, as described below.  It is 
anticipated that this decision will be made prior to preparation of the Initial Study for the Solar Power project.  
 
Task 2: Collection System and WWTP Improvements Categorical Exemptions 
 
If no significant impacts are identified and mitigation is not required, then a Notice of Exemption (NOE) form will 
be prepared.  The applicable exemptions will be identified, and an explanation of why the projects are exempt 
will be provided.  A draft NOE will be provided to the City for review.  After City review, a revised NOE will be 
provided to the City for signature. The City will submit the NOE to the County Clerk. 
 
Task 3: Solar Power Project Mitigated Negative Declaration 
 
Task 3A: Prepare Administrative Draft Initial Study (ADIS) 
 
It is assumed the Solar Power project will not fall within one of the exemptions, therefore, a negative 
declaration or mitigated negative declaration must be prepared for the project.  Due to its size and assumed 
operational characteristics, it is assumed that an Environmental Impact Report would not be required, even if 
the WWTP and collection system improvements are incorporated.  If a significant impact that cannot be 
mitigated to a less-than-significant level is identified, the consultant will immediately notify the City to discuss 
options for the CEQA analysis. 
 
The consultant will prepare an Administrative Draft Initial Study (ADIS) in accordance with CEQA and the CEQA 
Guidelines to address the environmental effects of the Solar Power project. The Initial Study will be based on 
the Environmental Checklist within the CEQA Guidelines.  The ADIS will describe the existing conditions within 
the project site based on information provided by the City, the biological and cultural resource studies, review 
of topographic maps, documents prepared for similar projects, review of public data bases that report known 
hazardous waste and related sites, and the site visit.  Greenhouse gas emissions, toxic air contaminants and 

Item 7B
3 of 28

















issues requiring additional analysis, the consultant may wish to renegotiate the cost based on 
the level of comment received. 
 
Factors that would increase the scope of work and estimated costs outlined in the proposal 
include:  attendance at additional meetings or hearings; printing of additional copies of 
documents; analysis of additional issues above those discussed in this proposal or at a more 
detailed level of analysis than described in this proposal; changes in the project requiring 
reanalysis or rewriting of portions of the DIS, responses to comments and/or MMRP; collection 
of data beyond that described in this proposal; and/or excessive comments on the draft Notices 
of Exemption, IS/MND, responses to comments, the MMRP and/or Environmental Package(s).  
The consultant would propose to renegotiate these items, if required, or charge on a time-and-
materials basis.  
 

Item 7B
11 of 28















requirements, commercial general liability coverage which is equivalent to the 
comprehensive general liability form and a broad form comprehensive general 
liability endorsement.  The insurance shall be in an amount of not less than $1 
million combined single limit personal injury and property damage for each 
occurrence.  The insurance shall be occurrence based insurance.  General liability 
coverage written on a claims made basis shall not be acceptable absent prior 
written authorization from the City.  

 
C. Automobile Liability Coverage. Automobile liability insurance covering bodily injury 

and property damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in 
connection with this Agreement, including coverage for owned, hired and non-
owned vehicles, in an amount of not less than $1 million combined single limit for 
each occurrence.  

 
D. Policy Endorsements. Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy 

shall be endorsed with the following provisions:  
 

1. The City, and its elected or appointed officials, employees and agents shall be 
named as insureds or additional insureds with regard to damages and 
defenses of claims arising from activities performed by or on behalf of the 
Consultant. 
 

2. The insurance afforded by each policy shall apply separately to each insured 
who is seeking coverage or against whom a claim is made or a suit is brought, 
except with respect to the insurer's limits of liability. 

3. The insurance shall be primary insurance as respects the City and its elected 
or appointed officers, officials, employees and agents. Any other insurance 
maintained by the City or its elected or appointed officers, officials, 
employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of this insurance and shall 
not contribute with it. 
 

4. The insurance shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced in 
coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has 
been provided to the City. 
 

5. Any failure to comply with the reporting requirements of any policy shall not 
affect coverage provided to the City, its elected or appointed officers, officials, 
employees, or agents.  

 
 
 
 
 













Section 20. Entire Agreement; Amendment.  
 
This Agreement, including all exhibits hereto, constitutes the complete and exclusive 
expression of the understanding and agreement between the parties with respect to the 
subject matter hereof.  All prior written and oral communications, including 
correspondence, drafts, memoranda, and representations, are superseded in total by this 
Agreement.  This Agreement may be amended or extended from time to time only by 
written agreement of the parties hereto. 
 
Section 21. Time of the Essence. 
 
Time is of the essence in the performance of the Services.  The Consultant will perform its 
Services with due and reasonable diligence consistent with sound professional practices 
and shall devote such time to the performance of the Services as may be necessary for their 
timely completion. 
Section 22. Written Notification. 
 
Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, any notice, demand, request, consent, 
approval or communications that either party desires or is required to give to the other 
party shall be in writing and either served personally or sent by first class mail, postage 
prepaid and addressed as follows. Either party may change its address by notifying the 
other party in writing of the change of address.  Notice shall be deemed communicated 
within two business days from the time of mailing if mailed within the State of California as 
provided in this Section.  
 
If to City:  City of Colfax 
   PO Box 702  
   33 S. Main Street  
   Colfax, CA  95713  
 
If to Consultant:  Adrienne L. Graham, AICP 
   4533 Oxbow Drive 
   Sacramento, CA 95864 
 
Section 23. Execution. 
 
This Agreement may be executed in original counterparts, each of which shall constitute 
one and the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties when at least one 
original counterpart is signed by both parties hereto. In proving this Agreement, it shall not 
be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart. 
 
 
 





EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Task 1:  Project Initiation 
¢ƘŜ Ŏƻƴǎǳƭǘŀƴǘ ǿƛƭƭ ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ŜȄƛǎǘƛƴƎ ŘƻŎǳƳŜƴǘŀǘƛƻƴΣ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ /ƛǘȅΩǎ DŜƴŜǊŀƭ tƭŀƴΣ ŜƴƎƛƴŜŜǊƛƴƎ 
studies prepared for the project, the grant application, and any other pertinent project documents 
provided by the City.  A meeting with City staff could occur during this task to discuss the proposed 
project, CEQA process, scope, schedule or other items as warranted.  In addition, the Consultant 
will discuss the scope of the environmental analysis with Water Board staff.  
 
A draft project description will be drafted and circulated to the City for review based on available 
engineering and other information provided by the City. The Consultant will revise the draft project 
description based on City comments. 
 
The Consultant will work with the City and Water Board to confirm that the collection system and 
wastewater improvement portions of the project are eligible for a Categorical Exemption under 
CEQA.  An initial assessment of the potential for these projects to have significant impacts will also 
be made, based on the biological resource and cultural resource surveys and construction emissions 
calculations.  The biological and cultural resource surveys will be prepared after receipt of mapping 
that shows the pipeline corridors where improvements could occur and the boundaries of the Solar 
Power project, including possible staging areas.  The construction emissions will be prepared after 
receipt of the same mapping information, as well as details about the type of equipment to be 
used, project duration and other factors.   If emissions could exceed applicable thresholds and/or 
significant impacts on biological or cultural resources are identified, the Consultant will contact the 
City to discuss the incorporation of these projects into the Solar Power project MND, as described 
below.  It is anticipated that this decision will be made prior to preparation of the Initial Study for 
the Solar Power project.  
 

Task 2: Collection System and WWTP Improvements Categorical 
Exemptions 

 
If no significant impacts are identified and mitigation is not required, then a Notice of Exemption 
(NOE) form will be prepared.  The applicable exemptions will be identified, and an explanation of 
why the projects are exempt will be provided.  A draft NOE will be provided to the City for review.  
After City review, a revised NOE will be provided to the City for signature. The City will submit the 
NOE to the County Clerk. 
 

Task 3: Solar Power Project Mitigated Negative Declaration 
 
Task 3A: Prepare Administrative Draft Initial Study (ADIS) 
It is assumed the Solar Power project will not fall within one of the exemptions, therefore, a 
negative declaration or mitigated negative declaration must be prepared for the project.  Due to its 
size and assumed operational characteristics, it is assumed that an Environmental Impact Report 
would not be required, even if the WWTP and collection system improvements are incorporated.  If 






	00A 190213 Agenda
	04A  190123 Minutes
	04B Quarterly Investment QE12-31-18
	190213 SR Quarterly Investment Report QE 12.31.18
	190213 Investment Data

	07A Cannabis Permitting
	07B Environmental Cons WWTP Grant
	190213 SR Waste Water Planning Grant Environmental Review Contract Award Adrienne L. Graham
	Resolution 03-2019 Wastewater Planning Grant Adrienne Graham Environmental Review Resolution
	Proposal Pipeline and Solar Environmental SOW Feb 2019
	Adrienne L. Graham resume February 2019
	Adrienne L. Graham Consulting Agreement 2.13.2019
	Adrienne L. Graham Contract Exhibit A 2.13.2019




